3A

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023
REGULAR MEETING.
IN-PERSON AND VIRTUAL - TOWN HALL
MINUTES

The Board of Selectmen held a regular meeting on Tuesday, August 8, 2023, with First Selectman Pam
Sawyer presiding. Also in attendance were Selectmen: Robert Morra, Mike Eremita, Bob DePietro, Adam
Teller; Town Administrator Jim Rupert and Kathy McCavanagh.

Members of the public included: Amanda Gordon, Rodney Fournier and Tim Johnston.

1. Call to Order.
P. Sawyer called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.

2. Public Comment.
Tim Johnston spoke of a recent article and seminar regarding fraud practices currently affecting homeowners. Recently a
gentleman who owned a vacant lot had it sold out from under him, and a million-dollar house was being built on it
unbeknownst to him. The Town Clerk of Fairfield is now using a Land Record Vendor that will notify property owners if
someone is trying to take over their property without their knowledge. Mr. Johnston suggested this may be something the
Town of Bolton should look into, and provided the BOS with a CTINSIDER article on this. (See exhibit A).

Amanda Gordon asked that the BOS consider the recommendation for the Mission Statement from the Diversity
Committee. She also stated she has heard complaints that some handicapped parking spaces at Town properties are not
labeled correctly and maybe we could put something out to see what exactly the citizen need.

3. Approval of Minutes:
a. July 11, 2023 — Regular Meeting.
Motion: B. DePietro made a motion to accept the July 11, 2023, minutes as presented.

1%t B. DePietro 2"d: M. Eremita
Vote:
Yes: B. DePietro, M. Eremita, A. Teller, P. Sawyer
No: None
Abstain: R. Morra U o
Ny
b. July 25,2023 — Special A/P Meeting. LT ‘X)‘/////
Motion: B. DePietro made a motion to accept the July 25, 2023, minutes as presented.
1%: B. DePietro 2nd: R. Morra
Vote:
Yes: B.DePietro, R. Morra, A. Teller, P. Sawyer
No: None

Abstain: M. Eremita

4. Appointments: BOS Needs to Appoint Alternate for ZBA.
a. Thomas Lyon — To ZBA Alternate — Endorsed by Republican Town Committee.
Motion: R. Morra made a motion to approve the appointment of Thomas Lyon to ZBA alternate.

1% R. Morra 2nd: A Teller
Vote:
Yes: R. Morra, M. Eremita, B. DePietro, P. Sawyer
No: None

Abstain: A. Teller



New Business:
a. Consider and Act on Resolution for Homeland Security Grant.
Motion: M. Eremita made a motion to approve the Resolution for the Homeland Security Grant.

1st: M. Eremita 2nd: B, DePietro
Vote:
Yes: M. Eremita, B. DePietro, R. Morra, A. Teller, P. Sawyer
No: None

Abstain: None

Motion: R. Morra made a motion to add the EMPG Grant Resolution to the Agenda (5e).

1st: R. Morra 2nd: A. Teller
Vote:
Yes: R. Morra, A. Teller, B. DePietro, P. Sawyer, M. Eremita
No: None

Abstain: None

Motion: R. Morra made a motion to add the Bid Waiver to the Agenda (51).

1st: R. Morra 2nd: A. Teller
Vote:
Yes: R. Morra, A. Teller, B. DePietro, P. Sawyer, M. Eremita
No: None

Abstain: None

b. Consider and Act on Resident State Trooper Contract.
Motion: M. Eremita made a motion to accept Resident State Trooper contract.

1st: M. Eremita 2nd: R. Morra

Discussion: Contract is a little less than last contract due to lower benefits cost. M. Eremita again stressed the lack of
police protection in town and the extended wait times when a trooper is called. He would like to see us reach out to the
surrounding towns and see if we can’t work something out for someone to always be covering Bolton, Andover and
Columbia and Hebron. We should pool our resources and hire troopers as a group and schedule them as needed so our 4-
towns are always covered.

Vote:

Yes: R. Morra, M. Eremita, B. DePietro, A. Teller, P. Sawyer
No: None

Abstain: None

c. Discussion on Changing Tax Payments from Once to Twice a Year.
There has been an email and phone call over resident’s concern of paying the taxes this year. Because the rates have gone
up so much some are asking that we revisit the possibility of making two tax payments per year instead of one. Qe
restt
With the interest rates going up so much it would cost the town a sizable amount to cover the time to do a second tax bill
and get that money collected. We currently have 99 to 100% compliance with one payment per year. Some pee-ple-may
have an issue paying the tax amount once a year but the rest of the town residents shouldn’t have to @St ,
because-ofit. Two payments a year has major fiscal ramifications on the town. Taxes would have to go up more to cover
the short fall until the 2% payment was collected. As in previous years, if someone is having an issue, they should talk to
the tax collector; as she is usually willing to work it out with them.

XS

d. Discussion and Approval on Updated Department of Finance Policies and Procedures Manual.
Motion: R. Morra made a motion to approve the Department of Finance Policies and Procedures Manual with the red
line edits as presented.

1st: R. Morra 2nd: M. Eremita



Vote:

Yes: R. Morra, B. DePietro, P. Sawyer, M. Eremita
No: None
Abstain: A. Teller

e. Consider and Act on Resolution for the EMPG Grant.
Motion: R. Morra made a motion to approve the Resolution for the EMPG grant.

Ist: R. Morra 2nd: A. Teller
Vote:
Yes: R. Morra, A. Teller, B. DePietro, P. Sawyer, M. Eremita
No: None

Abstain: None

f. Consider and Act on the Resolution to Waive the Bid for Stone for the Trail
Motion: R. Morra made a motion to approve the Resolution to Waive the Bid for Stone for the Trail.

1st: R. Morra 2nd: B. DePietro
Vote:
Yes: R. Morra, A. Teller, B. DePietro, P. Sawyer, M. Eremita
No: None

Abstain: None
6. Ongoing Business: None.

7. Reports an Updates:
a. Properties and Facilities Admin. Report.
i.  Temporary Building

Things are starting to move along for the temporary building. We are finalizing floor plans and will be sending
them over to Wilscot. Had an onsite meeting with the excavator person, highway and building and grounds
supervisors. We will be turning the building so that the long side is facing the road and parallel with the old
building.(the front side of the building will actually face the highway garage). This will provide us better access
and another 20-30 feet for when we do the tear down of the old building. Wilscot has estimated 3-4 weeks for

build time. In the meantime, we will do site prep. Hope to have the new building on site in September and then
the town staff will do the stairs and ramps.

ii. = Connectivity Trail
Work on the trial is moving forward. We’re having a little trouble with washouts on the trail in a couple spots
but once the grass grows in, we feel this will prevent that happening. Landi Construction will start piping the
week of August 21 and expect it to take 3-5 days. Bartlett Tree preservation is on notice to help with trees
along the trail. The goal is to be done with Bolton Center Road prior to the start of the school year.

iii.  Library Patio
Patio will be going behind the library. We currently have 2 bids and are waiting for a 3. Hope to be completed
by the end of September but can ask for a 30-day extension if needed.

b. Cyber Upgrades.
e  Moving to (.Gov ) Domain.

We’ve been working with NOVUS to get our cyber security taken care of and expect the town to be moved over to
the (.Gov) domain by the end of next week.

c. FY 24 Budget Report.
Currently showing 87% expended but expect this to go up greatly once the Trooper contract is paid.

d. Budget Transfers.
Informational purposes only.

e. A/P Report.
Motion: B. DePietro made a motion to approve the A/P report as presented.



7.

10.

Ist: B. DePietro  2nd: M. Eremita

Vote:

Yes: B. DePietro, M. Eremita, R. Morra, A. Teller, P. Sawyer,
No: None

Abstain: None

First Selectman’s Report.

Webster Lane — we are still waiting on the engineering report.

Brush Truck has been posted on the website with a reserve of $5,000.00.

Town Administrator evaluation needs to be done before the new contract (Due before November 1%). Needs to go before
the Personnel Subcommittee.

DOT — Flyover bridges at the Notch will both be re-painted by DOT. Pam has also requested help in getting them to re-
examine the end of 384 design and completing it.

Administrative Officer’s Report:
a. Monthly Report.
b. Other.
We should think about a ribbon cutting/open house once the new temporary building is completed.
Quarterly supervisor meetings will start in September. Liz Thornton to host the first one.
Liz Thornton also researching EV charging stations grants to possibly put a charging station at the library.

Adjournment.
P. Sawyer adjourned the meeting at 8:15.

Next A/P meeting to be scheduled for: Tuesday, August 22,2023 - 5:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Kathy McCavanagh

Please see minutes of subsequent meetings for corrections to these minutes and any corrections hereto.



33

TOWN OF BOLTON
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
SPECIAL A/P MEETING

TUESDAY, AUGUST 22, 2023
MINUTES

The Board of Selectmen held a Special Meeting on Tuesday, August 22, 2023, with First
Selectman Pam Sawyer presiding. Also in attendance were selectmen: Robert Morra, Mike
Eremita, Bob DePietro, Adam Teller, and Town Administrator Jim Rupert.

1. Call to Order.
P. Sawyer called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

2. Consider and Act on A/P.
Motion: R. Morra made a motion to accept the A/P minutes as presented.

Discussion: A. Teller would like to know more about the FD Proficiency Fund of almost
$20,000. Where is the backup for this? What exactly is this payment for? Who is the
vendor? How did they come up with these figures? And, finally when was the last
payment made for this?

J. Rupert said he would ask finance for this information.

By: R. Morra 2"d: M. Eremita

Vote:

Yes: R. Morra, M. Eremita, A. Teller, B. DePietro, P. Sawyer
No: None

Abstain: None
3. Consider and Act on Budget Transfers. None

4. Adjourn.
P. Sawyer adjourned the meeting at 5:11 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Kathy McCavanagh

Please see minutes of subsequent meetings for corrections
to these minutes and any corrections hereto.



H A

2023 Reappointment

I wish m%e reappointed as:
_a full time member
an alternate
either as a full member or alternate
I do not wish to be re-appointed at this time.

Board/Commission: 271 /0l ne_ (/¢ TLG el S KOMM/JS/W)

Name: foC{ ;’z’C’/ De 1‘./()/){'/0

Address: & Al 57’/ % Ho -

Day Phone: g (- QXCQ 1014 Cell
Evening Phone: OR M e

E-Mail: Bucldie isCool @ (ycz/v o0 (0]

PLEASE RETURN TO: hr@boltonct.gov
or
Jim Rupert, Town Administrator
222 Bolton Center Road
Bolton, CT 06043

By: August 30, 2023



>t

Memorandum

TO: Bolton Board of Selectmen

FR: Kristin B. Heckt
Superintendent of Schools

DT: August 25,2023
RE: Bid Waiver

CC: Bolton Board of Education

Pursuant to the bid ordinance, please be advised that the Bolton Board of Education waived the bid for the
purchase of Chromebooks at the August 24, 2023 meeting. The purchase will be done through the Interlocal
Purchasing System (TIPS), a national purchasing cooperative open to governmental agencies, higher education,
city and county government, for $25,415.



o A

McCavang@, Kathleen

From: Bill Freeman <wfreeman323@gmail.com>
Sent: , Thursday, July 13, 2023 5:19 PM

To: Sawyer, Pamela; McCavanagh, Kathleen
Cc: Jamie Freeman

Subject: Hebron Rd at Webster Ln stop sign

This message originated from outside of Bolton. Please be careful when clicking links or opening attached documents.

Dear Board of Selectmen,

First | would like to say thank you for listening to our concerns regarding the stop sign at Hebron Road and Webster
Lane.

This most recent meeting it was good to hear the concerns of the residents from the Webster Lane and Castlerock
Drive neighborhoods. Although we do not share all the same beliefs about the stop signs, there was a common
reoccurring theme shared by most everyone. Even the neighbors who were in favor of leaving the stop sign in place
agreed the increased noise has become a quality of life issue for us all. The vehicles acceleration from the stop sign is just
loud!

Although the belief of utilizing the State Police to enforce the traffic running the stop sign would be an effective
measure, it does not fix the noise nor does it fix the lack of stopping at the stop sign. The troopers can’t dedicate
enough hours in the day to enforce all the violations.

| knowledgeably speak about effectiveness of enforcement of a stop sign, as | am a retired police lieutenant after 25
years of service and served as a patrol division commander. | have been involved with both the enforcement side as well
as being involved with community requests for traffic control devices such as stop signs and speed bumps.

In my experiences, to have a stop sign erected, it would have been a much more in depth study to a location before we
would have ever done such. We would need all traffic accident data, traffic counts, and consultation with our highway
department. | do not feel the Town of Bolton put much—if any—assessment or studies into the Hebron Road at Webster
Lane intersection before making a decision to put a stop sign in place.

During the 7/11/23 meeting | supplied the board with traffic accident data for Hebron Rd for the last five years. That
accident data was supplied from the UConn Accident Data Repository where all of CT traffic data is collected. The data |
supplied shows eight motor vehicle accidents. None of those accidents showed to be at Hebron Road and Webster Lane.
In fact, several of the accidents were actually at the other two intersections (School and Loomis) since the new stop signs
were also erected. Trooper Contenta was also nice enough to check their in-house computer to verify no other accidents
for Hebron Rd at Webster existed in past 10 years.

So given my expertise and available data, | must ask—With no supporting accident data and no known traffic counts,
what criteria was used to decide a stop sign at Hebron Road and Webster Lane?

| believe there may have been a prior complaint of a “line of sight” issue from Webster Lane onto Hebron Road, but
from the minutes of your prior meetings, that issue was addressed by the town highway and was/is no longer an issue. If
it is still an issue, then that’s the town needs to address the site line. A stop sign does not fix a site line, it just gives those
drivers leaving Webster Lane a false sense of that other drivers will stop.

We continue to request the town remove the stop sign north and southbound on Hebron Road at Webster Lane, as the
residents in closest proximity are impacted by the negative effects on a 24/7 basis. | appreciate the citizens living on
Webster Lane and Castlerock Drive may have to be cautious drivers when pulling out of Webster Lane, but the same is
for many other intersections we encounter in our town roads and lifetime of driving. It should also be noted they also
have an alternate route they can take and are not forced to use Hebron Road, as we don’t have the ability to move out
homes to escape the newly excessive and unnecessary noise.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.



. Bill Freeman
Daria Drive



2

McCava nagh, Kathleen

From: John Gasper <notifications@branchcms.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 8:06 PM

To: townadmin@boltonct.org

Subject: Email Popup Form Submission

New form submission on August 30, 2023
Name: John Gasper

Email: GaspersAutomotive@gmail.com

A copy of this form will be sent to your email as listed above.
Phone number: 8602051142

Message: Jim,
New stop signs on Hebron road have worked really well and should be kept in place however safety while walking,
jogging etc along Hebron road is still dangerous. It is also a great way to connect people to the center of town on foot

rather than by car or to even go to Herrick park etc.

After speaking with several residents in the vicinity of hebron rd and other connecting roads we would like you to push
for getting funding for a sidewalk to be installed from valarie circle up to the center of town at the town hall. This is also
endorsed by mike eremita.

The sidewalk would probably make most sense on the east side of the road for ease of construction.

We would appreciate any help you can give in this endeavor.

Thanks
John

Attachment:
Contact name: Jim Rupert

Contact: dG93bmFkbWIuQGJvbHRvbmNOLM9yZw==



© A

McCavanagh, Kathleen

From: Rupert, Jim

Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2023 9:16 AM

To: McCavanagh, Kathleen

Subject: FW: Hebron Road - Webster Lane Intersection
Attachments: 11-09-17 Hebron-Webster Intersection.pdf

From: Joseph M. Dillon <jdillon@nlja.com>

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 9:08 AM

To: Rupert, Jim <jrupert@boltonct.org>

Subject: Hebron Road - Webster Lane Intersection

Jim,

| have attached the letter that | wrote to Joyce back in 2017. It discusses the process we utilized to evaluate the Hebron
Road — Webster Lane intersection. We determined that the issues with the intersection were primarily due to the
intersection sight distance looking north along Hebron Road. Clearing of the brush for both north and south sightlines
was recommended. | recall when Lance and | looked at the area to be cleared, it appeared as though the sight line could
possibly be passing through property outside of the Town’s right-of-way. A survey would be needed to confirm this.

To remove the stop signs at the Hebron Road Webster Lane intersection, the sightlines to both the north and south
along Hebron Road would need to be cleared and maintained. To be certain that the clearing would be done within the
Town's right-of-way, we would recommend identifying the ROW line and the required intersection sight distance and
determine if the intersection sight distance line is in fact within the ROW. If not, permanent easements to maintain the

sightlines should be obtained.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Regards,
Joe

Joseph M. Dillon, P.E.

ﬂ Nathan L. Jacobson & Associates

d‘ Consulting Civil and Environmental Engineers

86 Main Street, P.O. Box 337, Chester, Connecticut 06412-0337
860.526.9591 - jdillon@nlja.com » www.nlja.com



Jacobson
November 9, 2017

Ms. Joyce M. Stille, Administrative Officer
Town of Bolton

Bolton Town Hall

222 Bolton Center Road

Bolton, CT 06043

Re:  Intersection Stop Control Evaluation
Hebron Road/Webster Lane
NLJ #0963-0001

Dear Ms. Stille:

You have asked our office to provide comments and recommendations a proposed stop sign at
the Hebron Road/Webster Lane intersection, with the primary focus being intersection sight

distance.
Our evaluation of intersection stop controls at this intersection included the following:

1. We have conducted preliminary site inspections of existing physical conditions at the
referenced intersections.

b9

We considered the posted speed limit on the roadways.

For Recommended Minimum Intersection Sight Distances, we make reference to the
Connecticut Department of Transportation Highway Design Manual, December 2003.

(RS

4. For standards, guidance, and options regarding Stop signs on public roads, we make reference
to the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, 2009 Edition. This manual sets forth the
basic principles that govern the design and usage of traffic contro! devices.

It should be noted that at this time our investigations are preliminary in nature and we have not
made extensive field distance measurements of intersection sight distance, obtained vehicle
counts, obtained vehicle speeds, obtained accident data or obtained field topographic survey data
of the intersections and surrounding areas. Such information would be required if a more
detailed engineering study of the intersections and intersection sight distance is desired.

We offer the following abservations, comments and recommendations for consideration:

A. General Background Information

Nathan L. Jacobson & Associates, Inc.
Nathan L. Jacobson & Associates, P.C. (NY)
86 Main Street P.O.Box 337 Chester, Connecticut 06412-0337

Tel 860.526.9591 Fax 860.526.5416

Caonsutting Civil and Environmental Engineers Since 1972



Jacobson

Ms. Joyce Stille, Administrative Officer

Re: Intersection Stop Control Evaluation
Hebron Road/Webster Lane
NLJ #0963-0001

November 9, 2017

Page 2

1. Intersection Sight Distance Considerations

Section 11-2.01.03 of the Connecticut Department of Transportation Highway Design Manual,
December 2003, provides the following recommended minimum Intersection Sight Distance
(ISD) for various design speeds for passenger cars. Sight distance is measured 15 ft. back from
the road intersected and an eye height of 3.5 ft. and an object height of 3.5 ft. are used:

Passenger Cars
Recommended Minimum

Design Speed Intersection Sight Distance
25 MPH 280 ft.
30 MPH 335 ft.
35 MPH 390 ft.
40 MPH 445 ft.
2. Criteria for Installation of Stop Signs

The following criteria for Stop Sign Applications are excerpts from the pertinent sections of the
above referenced Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD):

The following factors should be considered for intersection control:

Traffic volumes on all approaches

Number and angle of intersection approaches
Approach speeds

Sight distance available on each approach
Reported crash experience

Stop signs should be used at an intersection if one or more of the following conditions exist:

a. An intersection of a less important road with a main road where application of the normal
right-of-way rule would not be expected to provide reasonable compliance with the law
(this applies to a main road with minor intersecting road without any stop signs on either

road).

b. A street entering a through highway or street;



Jacobson

Ms. Joyce Stille, Administrative Officer

Re: Intersection Stop Control Evaluation
Hebron Road/Webster Lane
NLJ #0963-0001

November 9, 2017

Page 3

c. An un-signalized intersection in a signalized area;
Other conditions to consider for providing Stop signs:

a. A restricted view exists that requires road users to stop in order to adequately observe
conflicting traffic on the through street.

b. Locations where a road user, after stopping, cannot see conflicting traffic and is not able
to negotiate the intersection unless conflicting cross traffic is also required to stop.

c. High speeds, restricted view, or crash records indicate that a need for control by the Stop
sign;

The MUTCD specifically states that Stop signs should not be used for speed control. The
Connecticut Transportation Institute Technology Transfer Center notes that unwarranted stop
signs can cause problems at the intersection and along the roadway by encouraging motorists to
drive faster between intersections in order to make up for lost time; encourages the violation of
traffic laws as the rate of stop sign violations tends to increase; and increases the chances that
drivers will disregard conflicting vehicle and pedestrian traffic, which raises the risk of
collisions. Studies have found that Stop signs have little effect on traffic speeds, except in
braking and accelerating zones which are located approximately 200 feet on either side of the
intersection controlled, and that stop compliance is generally poor at unwarranted multi-way Stop
signs. Stop signs should be used only after engineering study determines a need is warranted and
for providing a solution to intersection safety problems caused by poor sight distance and
deficient road design.

B. Existing Intersection Conditions and Recommendation

The Hebron Road/Webster Lane intersection is a three-way intersection with Hebron Road being
classified as major collector road and Webster Lane classified as a local road. Hebron Road
generally runs in north-south direction, with the north bound lane posted at 25 MPH and the
southbound lane posted at 30 MPH. Webster Lane runs in an east-west direction at this
intersection. Currently a Stop sign is provided at the end of Webster Lane and there are no Stop
signs on Hebron Road. The question that has been raised is whether Hebron Road should also be
provided with a Stop sign due to intersection sight distance (ISD), as viewed from Webster Lane.



Jacobson

Ms. Joyce Stille, Administrative Officer

Re: Intersection Stop Control Evaluation
Hebron Road/Webster Lane
NLJ #0963-0001

November 9, 2017

Page 4

From Webster Lane ISD looking north on Hebron Road is approximately 325+/- ft.; ISD looking
south on Hebron Road is approximately 385+/- ft. One of the factors in limiting ISD from
Webster Lane looking north is a heavily vegetated road shoulder on the west side of Hebron

Road.

Recommendation - ISD from Webster Lane looking south on Hebron Road is adequate. ISD
from Webster Lane looking north on Hebron Road falls short of the minimum recommended
sight distance, however, the recommended sight distance can be achieved to the north
by maintenance of vegetation to a mowed condition in this area. It is recommended
that improvements the road shoulder be considered for implementation and the
intersection re-examined for the resultant increase in ISD prior to considering any additional
Stop signs at this intersection.

Should you have any questions or require additional information regarding this matter, please
feel free to call.

Sincerely,

Nathan L. Jacobson & Associates, Inc.
DL MK

Joseph M. Dillon, P.E.

IMD:jmd

cc: Lance Dimock
File



1C

%LY'TT %EE'CT %€ES 0T %LLST 88°LV9'€99'S S | CTLVS'9LT S| 00°S6T'OV¥8'S S | 00°988°€88 $ | 00'180v2L'9 S | 00°'T80VZL9 S s|ejol
%CE VT %CL'8 %T9°ET %96 ¥T ¥8'6/8°L0S S | 00°00€ S | ¥8°6/1°80S S | 9T°050°68 S | 00°0€2'L6S S | ooogz’z65 S uod3||0] d1sem
%9%°0T %8’V %CVET %05°6 00'S06'T S = S | 00°'S06'T S | 0000T S | 00°S0T‘C s | oo'sot'z S UOI}RAI35UOD

%00'0 00 vvT'TT S - S| 00PPT'TT S - S | o0vvTTT S| 00PPTTT S uol1ea.d9y
%1502 %99'¥C %E6°0C %8.'8T 0£'6£0'61C S | 16°€82'ST S | T9€ze e S | 6€°2€2'€9 S | 00'T9S'L0€ S | 00'T95°20€ S Ateaqn
%ES'0T %ST0T %61°8T %S0°0¢ CT6LTOVT S | 290688 S | ¥8'69T'6VT S | 9T'662°9C S | 00°69¥'SLT S | 00°69Y'SLT S S32IAJSS |e120S / SIoIuds

%00°0 00°009 S - S [ 00009 S - S [ 00009 S | 00°009 S UOISSILIWO) ,SUBIDIDA
%L6°CC %LU ET %S9'¥C %S9'¥C 66'901'TC S - S | 66790¥'TC S | 10°200°L S | 00°60%'8C S | 00°60%°82 S ulwpy yijeaH dijqnd
%80°ET %SETT %6211 %9€"ST 96'€9.'669 S | €9'869°CT S | 65 TOV'ETL S| T¥'9ST'eTT S | 00°6TL928 S | 006TL928 S sdQ Bulp|ing umo] /s)Jed
%00°0 %00°0 %E9'T %00°0 00°00T't S = S | 00001V S - $ | 00°00T'Y S | 00°00T'Y S uolissiwwo) Julp|ing d1jqnd
%¥6°LT %TE 8T %L9'EE %EE'8 0£'0/8'8L6 S| LTTE6'ST S | L6'T08'V66 S | €0°596°2L S| 00294290'T $|00£94'290'T S 5322115 pue shemysiH
%89'TT %E0'TT %95°9T %10°L 9€'6¢C'0T S # S | 9g'6TC'0T S| ¥9°0LL S | 00°000°TT S | 00°000°TT S juswageue Aduasiswy
%S0°S %ST°C %90°C %LT9 18'266'6C S : S | T8°266°6C S| 61200 S | oooo0'ze S | 00°000°2€ S jeysten a4
%00°'00T %000 %196 %00°00T - S - S - S | 0070059 S | 0070059 S | 000059 S [0J3U0D [eWIUY
%9661 %9/°T¢C %E0'ST %8E"9€ 09°0ZT¥9T S | €eotL'L9 S | €60€8T€T S | £0'0sT'9¢ S | 00'186°LS¢ S | 00'T86°LST S uoISsIWwo) all4
%00°0 %00°0 %000 %00°0 00°00€‘TTE S = S | 00°00€TTE S 5 S | 0000g'TTE S | oo0ogTTE S 32ljod
%06°'6T %98'ST %S6'€C %9T'S €€°€97'79 S | 00052'T S | €€€T5'99 S| £99TEC S | 00°0€8°29 S [ 000€8°29 S SU01123|3

%00°0 00°005°C S : $ | 00°005C S - S | 00°005°C S | 00°005C S jUaWdo|anaQ 1Wou0d3
%9€'E %00°€E %489 %LY'Y 00°'SET'C S 8 S | 00°SET‘T S | 00°00T S | 00°5€2'C S | 00°SET'C S spuepiam/spueju|
%00°'0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 00'8SZ'L S - S | 00'85Z'L S - S | 008522 S | 00857°L S 9}eqold
%G0'TE %S8°L¢C %69°6T %S9°€T TCLEB'EET S - S| TCLEYEET S| 64779T'TC S | 00°000°SST S | 00°000°SST S aoueJnsu| Auadold
%00°0 %0T'C %00°0 %09'8 ST'80S'T S 8 S | ST'80S‘T S | S8 IYvT S | 00°059°T S | 000059°'T S sjeaddy jo pieog 3uiuoz
%SC'C %TE'E %00'8 %18V L1200V S - S| L4200 S | €zeoe S | 00'soz'y S | 00502V S 8uiuoz g 3uiuue|d
%ES"0C %C9'LT %EL 8T %6E°TT S9°1¢¢'00€ S | 00°045'VE S | S9T6LVEE S | s€°sv0‘es S | 00°2€898¢ S | 00°£€8'98¢ S 9sM pue
%L6'8T %C6'8T %//°8T %SL'TC €€°852'60T $ | 00°0ST'L $ | €€'80¥'9TT S | L9°'TE0'ST S | ooovv'THT S | 00°0¥Y'TYT S }43]D umo]
%S VT %CETCT %8Y'ET %6€°'ST £6'022'906 S = S | €6°022'906 S | £0648'V9T S [ 00000T‘T£0'T S| 00°00T'TLOT S syjauag agull4
%¥9°vT %Y1 LT %ST VT %S0°LT 18°6¢.'3L $ | 00°00€ S | 18°620°6L S | 6T°Z88'ST S [ oozT6'v6 S | 00°ZT6'Y6 S 10329]|0) xe|
%S8'ET %SL'ET %668 %V6°'ST 98'60€'GET S | 00"00T S | 98'60SSET S | #T19¥'SE s | 00°T46°09T $ | 00TL6'09T S 10ss3ssyY
%000 %00°0 %00°0 %00°'0 00°000'Sy S : S | 00°000'st S - S | 00°000'SY S [ 00000'St S suipny
%LEET %90°E€T %EBCT %08°'9T LS'¥T6'66T S | 0000 S | £5'%29°00T S | €v€89'6E S | 00°80€'0¥C S | 00'80€‘0tT S uoneJ)siuIWpY |eldueUlS
%00°0 %S0°€E %TT'E %00°0 00°0St'C S - S | 00°0S¥'C S . S | 00°0S¥'C S | 00°05¥'C S ddueuld jo pieog
%86'TT %¥9°CT %C0'TT %L5'8T 60'96€'0LS S | 9€'29s S | S¥'8S60LS S | SS'TVS‘6CT S | 007005002 S | 00°005°00L S uofelisiuiwpy

TZA4 CCAd ECA pasuadx3 papuadxaun duesqundugl aouejeg alA asuadx3y 198png 198png paydopy

%

pasinay

€202 ‘0€ 3sn3ny $Z0TA4




%10°T6 v'orT'9LS S | 22998 $ | 99210085 S | 80'9/t'LOE S| 00'T6LTLE9 S| 00°T6LZEY'9 S s|jelol
%5966 €LTETT S = S| ELTETC S| LT'TT9'86G S | 00'7S2009 S | 00'vSteLS S UoI139]]0) a1se/\
%€6°'88 [4R3 X4 S - S| CT°EET S| 88'T/8T S | 00°S0T‘C S | 00601 S uolleAlasuo)
%16'96 08'920°6 S “ S | 08'920°6 S | 02°18€98¢ S | 00°80t'S6C S | 00°801'S6C S Ateaqny
%806 69 TV9VT S - S| 69 TV9'VT S| TE€SS8 VYT S | 00'86%'6ST S | 008617651 S S92IAISS |B120S / SI01UdS
%10 L6 (€98 S - S| Tr'€98 S | 85'¥10'8¢ S | 00°8/8'8¢ S | 00°8£8'8¢ S ulwpy yijesH dljqnd
%6€'16 TS'9TC'69 S = S| 1S9TC'69 S | ¥ 6CV'VEL S | 00'9¥9'€08 S | 00°9%9'€08 S sdQ Buipjing umo] /syJed
%1C'8 05°€92°E S - S| 0S€9L'E S | 0S'9€€ S | 00°00T v S | 00°00T Y S uoissiwwo) dulpjing d1jqnd
%1€ 96 L6°€S6'9€ S | 00°007 S| L6'ESE‘LE S | €0°€91'S96 S| 00/18200T S| 00/18C00T S s19a.4)S pue sAemysiy
%LE0L LT T9E'Y S - S| LT T9EY S | €8'0€€°0T S | 00°€69VT S | 00°€69VT S juawadeue| Adussisw]
%0C'v9 99'SSY'TT S - S| 99°GSt'1IT S | ¥EVPS0T S | 00°000°CE S | 00'000°CE S |eysJelp all4
%LL 96 00°00T S - S | 00°00T S | 00°000°€ S | 00°00T ‘€ S | 00°00T‘E S |0J1UO0) [ewiuy
%16°96 6876, S| zT99v's S| TT'198°0T S | 68°€TS0ET S | 00°'G8€TVT S | 00°98€‘THC S uoIssiwwio) all4
%LV’ 178 8/'895'TS S = S | 8/'895°1S S| CTI8Y'6LT S | 00'0SO‘TEE S | 00'0S0‘TEE S 92110d
%67 68 80°G20°L S - S | 80'ST0'L S | ¢6'£85'8S S | 00°€T9'G9 S | 00°€T9'S9 S Suoild3|3
%8€'€E G9'GSE'T S - S| S9'9SE‘T S| S€6/9 S | 00°GE0°C S| 00°S€T'C S Spuejlap/spuejuj
%C6'16 00'8T¢ S = S | 00°8T¢€ S | 00°0V6'S S | 0085’9 S | 008529 S 91eqo.d
%ECIL ST LSS'VE S - S| ST LSS'VE S| SLTv8'0TT S | 00°00V'SYT S | 00°00%'SYT S doueunsu| Ajiadoud
%89°0L $8'08% S - S | §8°08% S| ST'6ST'T S | 00°0V9‘T S | 000¥9'T S sjeaddy jo pieog 3uiuoz
%817'€9 ¥6'TSS‘T S i S| ¥6'TSS'T S | 90°'869°C S | 000ST'Y S | 00°0ST'Y S duluoz 13 uluue|d
%¢€0°'€6 96'658'TC S - S | 96°6S8'TC S| ¥0'6/6'16C S | 00'6E8'ETE S | 00°€S9°CYE S oSN pueq
%166 LY'T8TT S - S| LyT8TT S| €5°LLS'9¢T S| 0009L°LET S| 00°09L°LET S 49D Uumo |
%1518 8L'[69'T6T S = S| 8L'L69T6T S | ¢T'8T8'v¥8 S | 009ZS'9€0'T S| 009Z59¢0'T S syyauag agull4
%58 76 76°L69'Y S - S| 26'L69'Y S | 80°'0TS98 S | 00'80Z°16 S | 00'80T'16 S 40329[|0) Xe|
%EL 66 T¥'89¢ S - S | T¥'89¢ S | 65§ £S9G9¢€T S | 00'926'9€T S| 00CITTET S 10§S9ssY
%87 86 00°00S S - S | 00°00S S | 00°005'8¢ S | 00°000°6¢ S | 00°000°6¢ S sunipny
%CE'S6 88'ETT'TT S - S| 88 ETT'IT S| treerace S | 00°9¥S°LET S | 00°9¥S°LET S uoljeJlsiuiwpy [eldueuly
%96°'66 10T S = S| T0T S | 66'86€°C S | 00°00¥'C S | 001002 S 9JUEUl{ JO pleog
%9€°98 00°€CLL8 S 00°€CL L8 S | 00°€ET'SSS S | 00956 C19 S | 001957'80L S uoljeJisiuiwpy
pasuadx3 papuadxaun Jueiquinoul duejeg alA 9suadx3y 193png 128png paidopy

%

pasinay

€C0CAd




Budget Transfer Report:

BUDGET: L0V

Transfer § 2500
from gategory: OFHCE SOPPWES

to category: Vel SUCS

from #) DO OME 4 SO)-000Q -5\ al5- OO

to #{ C05-C LS H50)- Co0) - 5350 o=

BUDGET:

Transfer $

from c¢ategory:

from # - - - -
to # - - - .

BUDGET:
Transijer S
from ¢ategory:

from # - - - -

to#H_ = - - -

BUDGET:
Transfer $
from category:

to # - - - =

to category:

to category:

to category:

1a



1€

l :abed 0Z'1'eeoc [le}oQiayonoAdyidl  :Hoday Nd 05:6¢2:€ €202/0€/80 ‘pajulld
uoday jo pu3
11°28.'6$ ‘[ejol puel9
00°00v$ -[eJO L JOpuUaA
00°00v$ ‘|B}0 1 8010AU|/Od
0 #393YD
‘M'H - Jleday peoy €202/0¢/9
dvd dOLS ® MOTI3A
00°00v$ 00000'0054S°000000°€0EY €+0°S00L 06EYELB eeeLee | 379N0A ‘ad TTIN AQAOHS - ONILNIVd 3ANIT - LNOAVYT
:dnouo 39y
12069 ONI SONIMYVYIN ALTIAVS
00's8z'es ‘[ejo L Jopusp
00°682'c$ :|e101 8010AU|/Od
0 #393Yy)d
‘wwo? al - Alddng % “Juley Aunoag/ali4 IXAVAAAL
68¢CLL# 31LOND
00'68z'c$ 00000°20EYS'000000°€02y 205001 68211 8G¥LeEC | d3d SY 4ITIVHL X0g T33HM-¥ 404 SOIHdAVHD
:dnoug yoay)H
077 °01dN1S JIHAVHD 2 NOIS SHHYOMIDVINI
L1°260'2$ :|ejoL JOpusp
L1°260'C$ ‘[ejo 1 8d10AU/Od
0 #X8UD
"UILIPY - S82IAISS Y03 /|euoissajold €202/LL/8
, €2/S/¥-2¢2/LIL L NMOA-MVYHA 3MV1 NOL109 H3IMOT
L1°260c$ 00000°00€€5°000000°20L¥ L ¥0'S00L G§¢/80¥d3A 01l - SIN3IAT VIO3dS FIA0THINT 40 INIFNTSHNGNITH
:dnolg yoayn
103104d
S qAAN TVLINIWNOYUIANT ANV ADH3INT 40 1d3a
a)eq a210AU| # Jopuap, uonduosaq
junowy glolere)s 9010AU| "'ON Od ALD o~ auleN Ny Jopuap
{ €202-220C :1epA [edsiq
€202/0€/90 8671 :Joqunp yodjeq I8YydnNoA

uojjog JO Umo |



3 :abed 0Z'L'ecoe Ile}Jo@ieyonondyidl  iHoday Nd G0:2¢2:€ €202/0€/80 -pajuld
:dnoug yoayn
" NOILVIDOOSSY AdVYHEIT NVOIHINY
00°95¢€$ [eJ0] JOopusp
0095€$ :|ejo | 30l0AU|/Od
0 ‘#393YD
1adQ "pling UMo| - S82IAIaS Julel B Jieday €2c0e/oL/8
3SNOH 3dId 1V
00'95¢% 00000°'00€¥S°000000°'66€Y €¥0°S001 ¥69/.85¢1L 60v0ve | NOILDOIdSNI INJLSAS NOISSTHAdNS FHId TVNNNY
:dnouo yo9yn
8/8€LL LNINGINDT U4 JLVYLIS TV
00°0Sv$ -|ejoL JOpuap
00°05+$ :|ejo 1 8210AUl/Od
0 ‘#308YyD
S92IAISS [BUOISSDJOI JAYIO - Snoaue|[@asIiy €coe/L/9
143ONOD
00°0Sv$ 00000°00t€S'60100€°€0SY G¥0°0.6¢C €e/eels gclove L 334 ANVE LY3ONOD H3NINNS €2/€2/8
:dnolg yosyn
SINISTFNVYEYA VIHJOS VHANYXITVY
09°0£9°L$ ‘|ejo L Jopusp
00°G§v.L$ -[eJ018010AUl/Od
0 #393YD
“1adQ "pling UMO] - S82IAIBS JulR) 3 Jieday €coceivLI8
00S1.$ 00000°00€¥5°000000°66€Y €#0°G00 L 69881¢ 86c0vC | SHILNIYd FONVYNIH 2 HO4 IONVYNILNIVIA
:dnoig yo9yn
09'G88% :|eJ01 8210AUI/Od
0 #393UD
“JadQ "pIing UMo] - S821AIaG Juley g Jieday €coe/LelL
09'688% 00000°'00€¥S5°000000°66EY ' €¥0°S00 L L629l¢C veceove | €2/82/01-6¢// @dueusjulew Jaidood |[eH umo |
:dnoug }oayo
65789 dNOYo LoV
a)e( 9210AU| # Jopuap uonduosaqg
junowy Junoooy 9010AU| "ON Od ALD T TOweNJIWaY Jopuap
Y202-€20C :JegA |edsiq
€202/,0/60 0.0} :iaqunn yojeq J89YydnoA

2

uojjog Jo umo|



4 :abed 0c'L'ecoe lleye@ieyonoadyidl  Hodey Nd §0:22'€ €¢02/0€/80 :pejuld
:dnolo ¥oayn
65CLL ‘00 Ldvaodd
00°009% ‘|10 JOpusp
00°009% -|Ej0 1 8010AU|/Od
0 #3%8Yd
1adQ 'pling UMO] - S32IAIBS Ul B Jieday €c0c/ce/8
00°009% 00000°00€¥5°000000°66EY €#0°S001 9zoct 9ceove | ajonb Jad se |leH umo] je siiedal QYAH
:dnous) yo8yn
"ONI “00 % AVSANIT 'L'g
1G'8LL$ ‘[eJo JOpUBA
1G°821L% :|ejo 1 8210AU[/Od
0 ‘#3934D
auag ‘|dw3 - adueinsu| aj €coe/8lL/8
1G8LL$ 00000°00+25°000000°L¥7L¥ L ¥0'S00L /911016 o1l €202 Ld3S - IONVHNSNI 3417 NMOL
:dnoio yoayn
3417 WIHLNY
[AAYAZ ‘|ejo Jopusp
[AAC VA% ‘|B}O 92I0AU/Od
0 #398yD
Aynqer Buues|d asueinsu) €20c/LLI8
[AA VA% 00000'0£202°000000°0000°000°500} 92/88vS1 0 1 €20¢ 1d3S - vIolaan 33113
:dnoug ¥oayn
SSOUOD ANT1d WIHLINY
00°00¢$ -[BJ0L JOpuUsp
00°00¢$ -[BJ013210AUl/Od
0 #3034D
"JqI7 - s394 3 sang €20c/ee/8
IVMIANTY
00°00€$ 00000°00185°000000° L0OS¥'G¥0'S00L ¥20¢/ee0c LLE0VC | IVYM3N3Y dIHSY39W3N +202-£€202
ajeq adloAu| # lopuap uonduosaqg
junowy Juno22Yy 8210AU| "ON Od ALD alWep jway Jopusp
¥202-€20C :Jea) |edslq
€202/L0/60 0.0} :idqunn yojeq 189Yyonop

Bunsi [re3eqg JoYyonop

uojjog JO UMo |



:abed

g 0c'L'ceoe [le1ediayonopdyid!  Hoday Nd §0:2¢2'€ €202/0€/80 ‘pajuld
:dnoig ¥oayn
'dd0OD SVY9 TVdINLYN LNOILDOINNOD
GEGLLS :[ej0] IOpuUsp
GEGLLS ‘|01 8210AUJ/Od
0 #3%3UD
‘1adQ BuIp|ing UMO] - SUOREDIUNWWOY €coe/eel/8
£2/62/6-0€/8
GEGLLS 00000°00€55°000000°66€'€#0°S00L SLLG# 0 I GL/S# LANYALNI dH
:dnoio) ¥y
"1SVOWO0D
00°00¢$ :|ejo | Jopusp
00°00€$ :|e101 8210AU|/0d
0 ‘#3934D
‘oD xe| - Buiutes ] |euoneanp3 ‘joid €c0c/LLI8
Al 3SH4N0D
00°00¢$ 00000°002€5°000000°SE LY L0°SO0L €202 11v4d oceove L uosuyor ybia|ysy - Al 8sin0y
:dnoig yoaun
F3LLININOD DINDD
000..$ ‘|eJ0] JOPUBA
00024% :|B101 8210AU/Od
0 #X93UD
‘auag '|dw3 - sea4 "UlWpY SoUBINSU| €202/2/8
00°02L% 00000°01L025°000000° L LY LY0'SO0L £G¥Ge0EL 0 1 €202 Ld3S - SIVINYTS ONILTNSNOD ATHLNOW
:dnolg ¥y
ONI 1D 40 NMOYE 3 NMOdd
8 LLYS ‘|eJO JOpUaA
8°LLY$ :|ejo | 3210AU|/Od
0 #393UD
1q17 - sjeusjeyy Aesqr €20c/cel8
PeLLYS 00000°00%95°000000° LOSY'S¥0°S00 ) 9505999 Lelove L SX004 0¢
aje( a210AU| # JOPUBA uonduasaq
junowy JUNO22Y 90I0AU| ‘ON Od ALD SWeN Jway Jopusp
¥202-€202 -1edA |edsiy
£202/,0/60 0.0} :19quinp yojegq 19YydnoA

Bunsi [1e3aq J9yonop

uojjog JO UMO |



14 :abed 0¢'L'ee0e IIBI9QI8YINOACYIdI  Hoday Nd §0:2¢:€ €202/0€/80 -pajuld
‘MH - auijoses % jgsalg €202/0L/8
SS'Shy'9$ 00000°09295°000000°€0EY E¥0'S00L NML 206201 0 VO Y3d 8¥6£26'2$ @ VO 0F'+02'2 - 13S3Id
:dnois ¥oay)H
ADYUINT H3AIE 1SV
00°0¥$ :[ejOoL IOpusp
00°0v$ -|Bj013310AU}/Od
0 #X994D
‘Wwo) alld - saad B senq €c0c/12/8
SL1INY3d Ydl3dd3d
00°0v$ 00000°00185°000000°€02Y'2¥0°S00} ¥c0c2-€20c 0 N8 NOXIA 9 - SLINY3d LHOIT ONIHSVY 14 TYNNNY
:dnoio yo8yH
ANQA
L0'9LL° LS ‘[ejoL JOpusp
10'922°1$ -[ejo1 8d10Au}/Od
0 #X93yD
"JadQ Buipjing umo] - jon4 Bunesy €20¢/S1/8
€9¢9L$ 00000°01295°000000°66EY'€¥0°S00L €2/8/8-CL/L LV3AH 0 081.8# 9019 MuVd - [on4 Bunesy
"JadQ Buipjing umo] - jan4 Buneay €c0c/sL/8
9v'L0L$ 00000°01¢95°000000°66EY €¥0°S00L €2/8/8-CL/. LV3IH 0 8L L# LSY - [on4 Buijesy
"1adQ Buipjing umo - |and Bbunesy €20c/SL/8
2Z9LL$ 00000°01295°000000°'66EY'€Y0'G00L  €2/8/8-CL/L 1V3AH 0 6906# 1d3A 3dI4 - |en4 Bunesy
“JadQ Buip|ing umo] - jan4 Bunesy €20¢/SL/8
(AR 445 00000°01295°000000°66EY'€¥0°S00L  €¢/8/8-2L/L LV3IH 0 ¥99L# MNV.L TIVINS OINNN - [8nd BuesH
“JadQ Buip|ing umo] - jan4 Buneay €202/SL/8
91°606% 00000°01295°000000'66EY'€¥0°'G00L  €2/8/8-CL/L 1LV3AH 0 9591# OWYN - 19n4 Bunesy
"JadQ Buipjing umo] - |an4 Bunesy €20¢2/SL/8
60°261% 00000°01295°000000°66£Y €¥0°S00L €2/8/8-2L/. LV3H 0 LoV L# 3OVHYD NMOL - [en4 Bujeay
“JadQ Bulp|ing umo] - [an4 Bunesy €2c0e/SL/8
GZ6LLS 00000°01295°000000°'66€'€P0°'G00L  €2/8/8-CL/L 1V3IH 0 L6S/# Advddl - 1end Bunesy
“JadQ Buipjing umo] - |an4 Bugesy €202/SL/8
80°€9L$ 00000°01295°000000°66E€Y°'€V0°G00L  €2/8/8-2L/. LY3AH 0 Z/0L# TTVH NMOL - [en4 Buiesy
a)e(g 9210AU| # Jopusp, uonduoseq
unowy 1uno2oy a210AU| ‘ON Od ALD SWEN Jiway Jopusyp
¥202-€20C :Jea, [edslq
€202/L0/60 0401 :equinp yojeg 19Yydnop

Bunsi |1e3aq 49Yyanop

uojjog Jo umo]



S :abed 0c'L°€eoe IlE}2@I8YoNoAdyidl  :Hoday Nd §0:2¢2:€ £202/0€/80 -pajuld
1adQ Bulpjing umo] - AIoLyos|g €coc/Le/e
€¢/12/8-0¢/L
[Ad445 00000°0¢29S°000000'66EY €¥0°S00L SS0c# GS0Z# 093ZVO - Aouos|g
Jado Buip|ing umo] - AioInos|g €c0c/Le/8
€2/1¢/8-02/L
00'95.% 00000°'02295°000000°'66€Y €0°'500L SyOoc# SY0Z# AdvHalT - fouos|3
1adp Buipjing umoy - Ayouoalg £c0c/Le/8
€¢/1¢2/8-0¢2/L
29'65% 00000°'02¢295°000000°'66€Y €¥0°'G00) LE0C# L€0Z# SNOIT - Aouioe|3
JadQ Buipjing umo] - Ayoos|3 g€coc/Lel/8
€¢/12/8-0¢/L
9¢'¥89% 00000°'02295°'000000°66EY €¥0°S00L 0coc# 020Z# ¥v3Y HOLON 86 - Aouya8|3
1ado Buipjing umo] - Ayouos|g €c0c/Le/8
€2/1¢/8-0¢2/L
8€7288% 00000°02295°'000000°66€Y €0°'S001L v10c# ¥10Z# TIVH WNOD/TTVH NMOLL - Aiduyos 3
1adQ Buipjing umo] - Aoupoa|g €coe/Le/8
€2/1¢/8-02/L
66119% 00000°02295°000000°66EY €¥0°S00L L00¢C# /002# 1d3A 314 - Ayouyos|3
:dnoig yoayn
"FOHNOSYHIAT
66'€l$ ‘|ejo] Jopusp
66'¢L$ :|e}o1 8210AU|/Od
0 #308YD
g1 - saddng “1ado so10 €coe/Le/8
66'CL$ 00000°0¢195°000000°L0S¥'SP0'S00L  AHVHEIT €2/12/8 SaT1NgLlHOIT
:dnoug yoayn
FHYMAHYH INTVA INYL ANVION3
2.°626'6% ‘[ejo Jopusp
2.°526'6% -|BJ0L3210AU/Od
0 #X93yd
‘MH - auljoses) g [asalg €20¢/8/8
L108v'es 00000°09295°000000°€0EY €0°S00L NML 620620} VO H3d 9v€2£6'2$ @ VO 08'¥8L'L - SYD
ajeq 82I0AU| # JOpUS/ uonduosaqg
unowy 1Uno2oYy 3210AU| "ON Od ALD alWeN Jway Jopusy,
¥202-€20C :ies) |edsiy
£202/L0/60 001 :laquinn yojeq 18ydnop

Bunsi |1e3eq Jayonop

uojjog JO umo|



9 :ebed 0Z'lL'ecoe lleyodiayonoadyidl  Hodsy Nd G0:2¢2:€ €202/0€/80 :pajuld
0 #393YD
AJBS ‘$S3j0ld JayiO - dwe) Jawwng yled JouiaH €20e/vi8
G2'892% 00000°00%€S"L0L00E €05y G¥0°0.L6¢C €1.690-4S oLiove L didl dNI dNIVO J3NINNS O Y3 LHUVHD SNd €2/¢/8
:dnoig yoayn
98¢eed ONI 'LN3ANLS 1S¥14
69¥6.'v$ ;|e10] JOpusp
69'V6.'v$ ‘|B}O1 80I0AUI/Od
0 #308YyD
Jjado Buipjing umo] - Ayoios|g €coc/Lei8
€2/12/8-0¢/L
60°.¥2$ 00000°'02295°000000°66EY €40°5001 8606# 0o I 8606# S1HNOD SINNIL - Aiouoe|q
JadQ Bulpjing umo] - Aoumoa|g €coze/Le/8
€2/12/8-02/.
06'vv$ 00000°'02295°000000°'66EY €0°'S001L YE09# 0o I ¥€09# QIHS dO-19 - A1oL109|3
Jadp Bulpjing umo] - Ajiouoa|g £¢0c2/SL/8
€eISLIg-vLIL
8.CL$ 00000°'02295°000000°'66€Y €¥0°S001L PE0S# o I $€0S# WYY 39AIY HOIH - Aouios|3
"JadQ Bulpjing umo] - Ayouyos|g €202/ce/8
€celee/s-Lell
00°0€$ 00000°'02295°000000°66€Y €¥0°S00L LLOV# 0 1l L LOv# MYV d MOIYY3H - Aiouyos|3
1adQ Buipjing umo] - Aouyoa|g €coe/Le/8
€2/12/8-0¢2/L
alL'zevs 00000°02295°000000°66EY €#70°5001 690v# 0 1 690%# A13147Tve - Awouyoslg
uadp Buipying umoy - Ayouyoalg €coe/Lers
€2/12/8-0¢/L
LP'0C$ 00000°'02295°000000°66€Y €#0°S001 6C0v# o I 620t# 4Hg - Aouys|g
JadQ Buipjing umo] - Ayouos|3 €coe/Lel8
€2/12/8-0¢/L
28'0v8$ 00000°'02295°000000°'66EY €0°'G00) ¢60cC# 0l 260z# JINYN - Aiouyos|g
"JadQ Bulpjing umo] - Ayouyoalg €c0c/Lel8
€2/1¢/8-0¢/L
9.'16% 00000°'02295°000000°66£Y €#0°S001 980¢# 0 I 980Z# 1SY - Aiouyoslg
JjadQ Buipjing umo] - Ayouyos|g €coc/Le/8
€2/12/8-02/L
00'vv$ 00000°02295°000000°66EY £0°S00L SL0C# 0o I G/0Z# SSS HOLON 86 - Aiouos|g
8)e(] 9210AU| # J0pUBA uonduosaq
junowy 1UNoo9Yy 8210AU| ‘'ON Od ALO aWeN JIWay Jopusp
¥202-€202 :1ea, |edsld
€202/L0/60 0.0} :isqunN yodjeg J8YydnoA

Bunsi [1e3aq 49yanop

uojjog JO UMmo |



7 :abed 0¢’1'ecoe lley2@IayonoAdyids  :poday Nd G0:.2€ €2¢0¢/0€/80 :pajulid

‘wwo) ali4 - juawdinbgy €c0e/LI8
00°0S5$ 00000°00€45°000000°€02¥ ¢0°S00 1 [4° VA% ogecove L €113 JHO4 43DYVYHO Oldvy 319v.LH0d
:dnoig yosy9n
¥6.L1L1 ‘ONIs3FTIvVS olavda ser
¥5'08% :|EJOL JOpUsA
5'98% ‘|B}O1 3010AU|/Od
0 #308YyD
uado Buipiing umoy - saddng €c0oc/SL/8
88'18% 00000°00195°000000°'66€Y €¥0°'S00) 9G1LL¥P086 (O S3LV1d TIVM ? SHOVI ONIYFIM J93LNdINOD
“JadQ Buipiing umoy - seiddng €¢0¢/./8
99'v$ 00000°00195°000000°'66EY €¥0°'S001L 669512566 01 A79VL d31NdINOD AYVHEIT HO4 LINVYED
:dnoig ¥oay9H
lered HIAONIVHO
00'95v$ ‘|ejoL Jopusp
00'65+$ ‘|BjoL@dI0AU|/Od
0 #9940
"JadQ "pling UMo] - S82IAISS ‘Julel g Jleday €202/61/8
00°65v$ 00000°'00€¥#5°000000°'66€Y €0°500L O/V 90719 9%4 96e0ve | JOVHYO SMAVd 1V L371N0 ANV 440-LNHS T1VLSNI
:dnoug ¥oay9n
0771 O1dLOT 13 ONIYHIO0D
vy vzes ‘|ejo 1 Iopusp
yr'vecs ‘|E}018010AU|/Od
0 #393YyD
"sadQ Buip|ing umo] - suonesIUNWWOY €20c/LLI8
€C/91/16-L1/8
vryees 00000°00€55°000000°66€ €+0°S00L evelit 0o I €vZL# ANOHJ3T3L DINUN
:dnoug yoayn
"H3AILNOYS
G2'892% -[BjoL Jopusp
G2'89¢$ -[BjoL8210AU/Od
ajeq 9210AU| # Jopusp uonduosaqg
junowy JUNO2OY 9210AU| ‘ON Od ALD SWeN Jiway Jopuap
¥202-€20C -1e3 |edsiq
€202/L0/60 040} :daqunp yodjeg Jaydnop mC_u.w_l_ __N“_.QD ._w—._030>

uojjog Jo UMmo|



8 :abed 0Z'l'ecoe [le}o@iayonoAdyidl  :Hoday Nd §0:2¢:€ £€2¢02/0€/80 :pajuld
0 #393Yd
S80IAI8S [BUOISSDJ0Id JaY)O - SNOBUR|[29SIN ¢£coe/8e/e
143DONOD
00°05.% 00000°00¥€S°60L00€'€0SY'S¥0°0L6C €2/0€/8 6Llobe | €¢/0€/8 S334 LYIDNOD JIANNNS .aNVg LJIHSLHODIN.
:dnoig ¥oayH
SMOIH HLINNIA
00°'LL¥$ ‘[EJOL IOpUBA
00'LLVS :|e101 8210AU|/Od
0 #308YD
"Jelq] - S89IAI8S [BUOISSB)0.d Jayi0 €20¢/1¢/8
NdZL 2 NVLL
00°'LLY$ 00000°00%£5°000000°L0S¥'S¥0°'S001 001 9geove | ‘NV0E:0} :SINVYOO0H ,IT13TNMN IHL NHVI 1. €2/91/6
:dnolg }oayH
MIANVLELS 3JInnr
06°06¢$ :|eJO| JOpuap
06°06€$ :|ej0 ] 30I0AUI/Od
0 #09YD
1q17 - sjeustepy Areiqry £cozc/vel8
¥c/0c/L
06°06€$ 00000°00+95°000000°LOSY'S¥0°S00 L NYHL MINIH 8/e0¥C | ¥2/€C Ad JO4 334 TVMINIYH NOILAIMOSINS ATMIIM
:dnolg ¥oayn
“HIHINONI TYNYNOr
00°GLL$ ‘|e}o ] IOpUBA
00G.L$ ;|e}o1 8210AU|/Od
0 ‘#393yd
‘Ielq - s80IAIBS [BUOISSBj0Id JAaUIO £202/8L/8
00'SLL$ 00000°'00%£5°000000°LOSY'G¥0°S00 ) gcelol 0 ! INJ0E:9 €2/21/0L WHOOHd VOINOWYHVYH IHL NYVI1
:dnoig yo8yn
ASS3INNIH 1¥390d HdIsor
00°095$ ‘|ejo] Jopusp
00°05S% :|ejo1 3210AU|/Od
0 ‘#)98UD
9)e( a%loAy| # JOpuUBA, uopdiasaq
Hhokhy Junodoy 80l0AY| ‘ON Od AlD aWeN Jway Jopuap
¥202-€20C :IEedA |edslq
€202/,0/60 0.0} :squinp yojeq JaydnoA

Bunsi j1e3ag 49yonop

uojjog JO UMO |



6 :abed 0Z'L'€e0c [le}2@IeyonoAdyid!  Hoday Nd S0:22€ €¢02/0€/80 :pajulLd
souelnsu| Ajiger @ Auadold £2c0c/LL/8
ININTIVLSNI
G/'29L'G$ 00000°00255°000000°LSL¥ L¥0'S00L 102¢e6eEL 01l ISL - ve/LiL-€2/LIL ADINOd TVIDHINNOD
:dnoig yoauyn
ONI "ANVdINOD 2 TIINOW
0000L$ -[ejoL Jopusp
00°00L$ ‘|01 3010AU|/Od
0 #308YyD
1adQ Buip|ing umo] - swiogiun €202/0¢/8
AINOWN
00°00L$ 00000°0£695°000000°66€Y €#0°G00L 1004 ¥2/€2 A4 0o I AINOI L0094 ve/ce Ad
:dnolo ¥09yn
1286¢2L IMSMOZOVYY MHVIN
65°252% :|ejo] Jopusp
65¢sz$ ‘|ejo13310AU/Od
0 #393YD
‘M’H - S92IA18G souBUSIUIR B Slieday £20¢/6/8
65°252$ 00000°'00€¥S°000000°€0EY €¥0°G00L 10¥8./200¢ oocove | GZ-O/ANTTALIDV/NIDAXO - SHAANITAD €
:dnoJg ¥y
AXO 3INIVIN
G1'¢65% ‘|ejoL Jopusp
G1'e65% -[B]0 1 3010AUl/Od
0 #393YyD
JadQ Buipjing umo] - selddng €20c/0e/L
G1°€65% 00000°00195°000000°66EY €0°S00L (015051572 ygLove L 1430 3HI4 04 HOLVHIDIH43Y INTJWIDV1d3d
:dnouo) yoayn
8GLLL LNNODJV SSANISNG SAMOT
00°0S.% ‘|ejo] Jopusp
00°05.% -[ej0 1 8310AU}/Od
aje a2l0AU| # lopuap uonduoseq
junowy Juno2oYy 2010AU| "ON Od ALD aweN Jiway Jopusp,
V202-£202 :lea, |edsi4
£€202/L0/60 0.0} :squnn yojeq J9Yyanop

Bunsi |1e3aq J8yonop

uo}jog JO UMO |



(0] -abed (VA A T4 [le}o@iayonopadyids  :uoday Nd §0:2¢:€ €202/0€/80 pajuLd
1q17 - sjeusiepy Aieigr €202/ee/8
TYMINTS
00G.L$ 00000°00¥95°000000°LOSY G¥0°S00 L 2¢0¢-€20c 0o I IVMANTY SSYd INNASNIN #202-€20¢2
:dnoug) ¥oayn
€80¢CL AWNISNIN HIY ANV TONI M3N
00°'562$ ‘[ejo L Jopusp
00'662% ‘|E}O1 8210AU|/Od
0 #393yd
‘AI9G "Uag - sa|ddng €ecoe/Lell
€¢/1¢/6 NO LNIAT NO3IHONNT
00°'s62$ 00000°01095°000000" LZ¥¥ ¥¥0°S00 L vleel Glcove L AHVSHININNY YSZ HO4 SHVg FLVYT0O0HD
:dnoug yoayn
S9)B|020YD) suosuniy
1G°1€G$ ‘[ejoL Jopusp
16°1e6$ ‘|B}0 1 8210AU|/Od
0 ‘#393YD
117 - sjeusyepy Aeigi €20¢e/ce/8
€1°092% 00000°00%95°000000° LOSY'S#0°S00L L€0CYey0s c6Love L sandaci
1q17 - sfeusyely Alesqr €coc/vLig
[4AVAS 00000°'00%95°000000° LOSY'S#0°S00L G6280¢210S [45140) 74" sanda ¢
1q17 - sjeuayely Areigiy €20c/L/8
9l°00¢$ 00000°'00%95°000000° LOG¥'S¥#0°S00) 82¢59.1L¥0G [45140) 7ANN" Sanae
:dnoig yo8yn
€./621 3dVL LSIMAIN
GZ'v.0'6$ [Bjo Jopusp
S2¥.0'6% ‘|E}0 1 8210AU|/Od
0 #308UD
aoueunsu| Ayiqer g Auadold €c0c/LL/8
G/.8€0°L$ 00000°00255°000000° LS L¥"L¥0'S00L VA AN 4 0 ! INIWTIVLSNIISL - ¥2/L/L-€2/L/. ADITOd Y11349INN
aouelnsu| Aypqer @ Auadoly €20c/LL/I8
) AININTIVLSNI
G.'T/8'C$ 00000°002S5°000000° LS LY L¥0°S00L ,0286€EL 0l ISL - ¥2/LI2-€2/LIL ADITOd ANIMVIN ANYINI
ajeq 2210AU| # IOpuUsp\ uonduosaqg
junowy 1UNo%oY 8010AU| "'ON Od ALD SWeN JWwey Jopusp
¥202-€20C -iea, |edsiq
£202/20/60 020} 18NN Y93eg J9YdNoA Bunsi neyeq 18yonop

uo}jog JO UMO |



L :abed

0c'L'geoc lleje@iayonondylds  poday Nd §0:2¢'€ €¢02/0€/80 -pajuld
:dnoig ¥y
12059 ONI SONIMIVYIN ALTAVS
000LL'S$ ‘|el0] JOPUBA
000}LL'GS ‘|BJOL3J10AU}/Od
0 #X08yd
asM) pueT %@ 'pling - AISS Y93 /[euoissajold €¢0¢/0¢/8
00°6¥€'2$ 00000°00€€5°000000° LS LY L¥0°S00L €¢/0¢/8 IAIM 0 g'¢€e €2/02/8-1/8 STDINYIS DONILTNSNOD ATINOH
8sM) pueT % 'piing - AISS Y22 /|euoissajoid €202/0¢/8
0069.'2$ 00000°00€€5°000000° LS LY L¥0°S00L €2/el/8 AIM 0 9'6¢ €2/E1/8-L/8 SADINYIS DONILTNSNOD ATINOH
:dnoig yoayn
NOSHVO 1301d1vd
09°L19% ‘|eJOL JOpUBA
09°'L¥9% :|e101 8210AU|/0d
0 #3994D
‘ulpy - S89IAIS Y29 Jay0 €£20¢/¥e/8
09'1¥9% 00000°025£5°000000°20L¥ L¥0°S00L 0191 01l GOE 14OSOHIIN - NOILdIHOSINS HA-L
:dnoug yoayn
ONI ‘LHOISNI SNAON
00891% ‘[ejo] Jopusp
0089L$ :|ejo 910AU[/Od
0 #3%84D
‘ulwpy - s8JIAI8G Y3 | /[euoissajold £202/8¢/8
F1dINVYS 3LV
00'891L% 00000°00€€5°000000°20L¥°L0°S00L Z¢Sl-€C 0 I IV NOLTI0g9 ¥3IMOT - SISATVYNY av1 €£2/5L/8
:dnolg yo8un
HOHV3S3Y O1LVNOV LSYIHLHON
00'G/L$ :|e10] JOpusp
00G.L$ ‘[e}o] 8210AU|/Od
0 #>08UD
ajeq a210AU| # Jopuap uonduosaqg
junowyy JUN022Yy 90I0AU| "ON Od ALD SWeN jway Jopusp
¥202-€202 :1es\ |edslq
€202/L0/60 0.0} :iSquinN yodjeq Jaysnop

Bunsi |1e3eqg 18yonop

uojjog JO umo|



cl :abed 0Z'1'€20¢c IIB}2QJaYoNoAdYId!  Hoday Nd S0:.2€ €¢02/0€/80 :p3ajuld
SYUILNIYd INDINHOAL
£0°08% -[ejoL lopusp
20°08% ‘[Bj013210AU|/Od
0 ‘#398y)d
"JadQ Bulpjing umo] - [an4 Bunesy €c0oe/oL/8
L0°08% 00000°'0L295°000000°'66EY €¥0°'G00L  AYIAITIA €2/6/8 0 1l AY3AITIA ANVJOHd XHVd MOIYH3IH
:dnoug yoayn
AN N ANVYdOdd Nvadndns
ST T4 -[BJOL JOpUaA
Geeees :|BJ0 L 3210AU|/Od
0 ‘#93YyD
sal|ddng [e1auas) - jJed YojoN ueipu| €coc/eLis
STl NA 00000°02195°80L00€" 0S¥ 'G¥0°0.L6¢C 98¥99¥v0¢6 €8¢€0¥C | 10-MVd Avd AY3llvd a3v
:dnoig yo8yn
O STTIVS HIAMAYLS
0008% ‘|eJOL Jopuap
00°08$ -|ejo 1 8210AU|/Od
0 #3934D
"JadQ "pling UMO] - S32IAISS JUIBl g Jieday €coe/LLI8
NOILD3dSNI
00°08% 00000°00€¥S5°000000°66€Y €#70°S00L cl8LlLl 01l H3LV3IH J3LVM LOH I9VdVD NMOL €2/v2/.
:dnoug) 3oy
1NJILOINNOD 40 3LVIS
89'606'2$ -[BJOL JOpusp
89'605'/$ -[BJ01 8210AU}/Od
0 #393YyD
‘M H - Jiedey peoy €coc/ielL
02'80v$ 00000°00525°000000°€0EY €¥0°S001L LBEVELB /6€0vC | (4821 ‘ZIX2l) AXOd3 SHvd dOLS
‘MH - lleday peoy €coc/Lel/L
8Y'L0OL LS 00000°00545°000000°€0EY €¥0°S00 L LBEVELB l6€0v¢ | S3NIT AXOd3 MOTT13A 379N0a &
aje( 9210AU| # Jopusp uonduosaq
unowy 1UN02oY 8010AU| "ON Od ALD SWEeN JIWay Jopuay,
¥202-€20C :MedA |edsid
€202/,0/60 0.0} :ilsqunn yojeq Jaydnop

Bunsi [1e3aq 49yonop

uojjog Jo umo]



€l :abed 0c’'L'€coc [le}@@ieyonoadyidl  Hoday Nd §0:2¢2:€ £€20¢2/0€/80 -pajuld
0 #>98UD
"18dQ "pIiNg UMo | - S3DIAIBS JUlel g Jieday €20¢/82/.L
88cle'cs 00000°00€¥S°000000°'66EY'€Y0°S00L €Peecs08lL oriove | 4HE 1V TOHLNOD NOILVLIDIN
:dnolg yo8yn
H3LN3D ONISSTO0HUd NIFHONYL
00°006% ‘[ejol Jopusp
00°006% ‘|e}O 1 8210AU|/Od
0 #3994D
‘WWOY) 3l - SUOHEDIUNLWIWOD) €20c/LIL
00°006$ 00000°00€55°000000°€02H ¢0°S001 ¥2-€¢ 4aIMOL gceove L IVLNIY ¥3IMOL SNOUVIN
:dnolg y2ayH
yooed AY3S 3414 dIV TYNLNAN ALNNOD ANVTIOL
05 0v$ ‘|eJOL JOpUBA
05°0v$ ‘[eJO1 8210AU|/Od
0 :#>08UD
1qiT - sjeusyely Aeigr €2cocivLig
€c/oL/e
05'1$ 00000°00%95°000000° LOSY'G¥#0°S00 ) NYHL M\IN3H 0 ! 334 ONISSID0Hd IDIOANI
“Iq1 - s|eusyep Aeigr €cocivLig
€c/oL/6
00'9¢$ 00000°00+95°000000° LOSY S¥0°S00 1L NYHL M\IN3YH 0 €2/0L/6 HONOYHL NOILdINOSENS ¥3dVdSMIN
1q17 - s|eusyepy Aeiqr €2ociviig
€c/oLie
oocts 00000°00%95°000000° LOSY S¥0°G00L NYHL M3IN3YH 0 €2/EL/I8 HONOYHL AY3IAITIA JINOH ¥3dVYdSMAN
:dnoig ¥oayH
39079 NOLSO4d FHL
09'¢62$ ‘|eJoL Jopusp
09'c6C$ '|eJO] SDI0AU|/Od
0 #308YD
asuadx3 sjoN 9 puog €¢02/e2/8
09'¢62$ 00000°0££85°000000°668Y'8¥0°5001} 2e8zee (o * S310ON NOILYdIDILNY ANOY NOILY9ITIO 1vH3INID
:dnoug ¥oay)H
a)e( 3210AU| # 10pUaA uondussaqg
unowy 1UN02oY 9210AU| "ON Od ALD BWEN JWaY Jopusy
Y202-€202 :IedA |edsiq
€202/L0/60 0.0} :ldqunp ydjeq J8YonoA

Bunsi |1e3aq 49YyaNoA

uojjog Jo umo|



14

:abed

0¢’'lL'€c0e 1B}9Q13YdNOAdYIdI  Hoday Nd S0:.¢'€ €20¢/0€/80 :pajulld
:dnoig ¥oayH
69111 0771 30LNAI¥1SIA ONIYS FOVTIIA
L1628 ‘[ejol Jopusp
11°622% ‘|E}O 1 3210AU|/Od
0 #3934D
‘AIag "usg - auoyds|a] €202/8L/8
SL8L$ 00000°00€55°000000°Le¥¥ ¥¥0°S00 L 91069¢€2V66 €8€G# ¢ 3NIT - INOHd 1D HOIN3S
‘AIag uag - auoydeje | €20¢/8L/8
SL'8L$ 00000°00€55°000000°L2y¥ ¥¥0°S00 L 91069¢¢66 0€LL# L INIT - INOHd {10 HOIN3S
“JadQ Buip|ing umo] - suoedIUNWWoD €202/8L/8
9€°05$ 00000°00€55°000000°66€¥'€¥0°S001 91069€2v66 98€E# 1d3dNd NIF - ANOHJ3T13L NMO.L
"JadQ Buipjing umo] - suojesIuNWWoY €202/8L/I8
25°9z$ 00000'00€55°000000°66£Y €#0°S00 L 91069€2166 G.//# 1d3A SHEVd - ANOHJ3T31L NMOL
“1adQ Buipjing umo - suoREdIUNWWO) €¢02/8L/I8
Lo'0v$ 00000°00€55°000000°66€Y'€¥0°500L 91069€CY66 ¢801# 1d3d O3d - ANOHJ3IT31L NMOL
"WWoY ali4 - SUoHEdIUNWWOD £20¢/9/8
z6'LeLS 00000°00€55°000000°€0CY'2¥#0°S00} €05Ceelv66 €202 9NV - INOHd 11340 1Ld3d 3dI14
:dnouo ¥oayH
SSITFHIM NOZIFAA
29°90v$ ‘[ejoL JopuaA
28'90v$ ‘|e}013310AU|/Od
0 #X934D
g1 - sjeusiey Aeiqr £2c0c/ee/8
ya/lel8
28°90v$ 00000°00%95°000000° LOSY'S¥0°S00 L NYHL MIN3H 18e0vC TYMINZA NOILJIFYOSENS ¥20¢-€20¢
:dnoig ¥o8y)
600€L AvVdoLl vsn
88'€l6'e$ ‘[EJOL JOpUSA
88'€l6'cS ‘|EJO13310AU|/Od
ajeq 9910AU| # lopusp, uoipduosaq
junowy JUN022Y 8210AU| ‘ON Od ALD aweN Jiway Jopuap
¥202-€20C :l1edA |edsld
€202/L0/60 040} :1squnn yojeg J3YyanoA

BunsiT |1eyaq Jayonop

uojjog JO UMo|



Sl :abed 0Z'L'ec0e Ile}2g4ayonoAdyid!  Hoday Nd §0:4¢2:€ €¢02/0€/80 -pajuld
"A9S "JoY - '[eAoway asnjay €coc/6L/L
00°00¢c$ 00000°L01¥5°000000°50¥8'+¥80'G00L  GZEL60NLTIANI Logove L 31SVYM dOOM
:dnoi9 %98y
OT1 1MYN3IA FHVYOIMN
16°221% -[ejo . Jopusp
1G6°221$ -|B}oL3010AU}/Od
0 #X03yd
‘MH - S8018S aouBUsuie) @ siieday €2c0c/L1/8
25°98% 00000°00€#5°000000°€0EY €¥0°S00 L S901L9l 0 I S14HVd HIvd3d MVYSNIVHO
‘M'H - selddng eoueusjuiepy 3 Jieday €20c/LLI8
66 Lv$ 00000°00195°000000°€0EY €¥0°G001L 790191 0o I ONIHLS HINOVM d3IM
:dnoig ¥o3yn
Leovel "ONI ‘SNOS ® SSN3¥d 'H'M
veeels -[el0 L JOpUaA
veeels -[ejo18d10Au}/Od
0 #9340
1917 - saljddng JadQ 2210 €20c/LLI8
6.°00L$ 00000°02195°000000°LOSY'G¥0°S00L 156v8¥0¥C 0l dINVT 3719Vl
Jq17 - saddng “Jado 20110 €2¢02/01/8
Sv'ee$ 00000°'02195°000000°LOSY'S¥0°'G00L 1906¢€0vC 0o I AdV1 ® SdITO
:dnoi ¥o8yn
6¥0€9d 'ou| 0D ‘uosely ‘g’ M
G9'9G$ ‘|e1o] Jopusp
G9'9G% ‘|EJOL3310AU}/Od
0 *#393YD
"I9S “uag - saljddng €20¢/8/8
10
08'LE$ 00000°0L095°000000° LYY +¥0°G00L HOIN3S - S2Ly9l 01l d3LvM
"M "H - saddng £202/8/8
AOVHVO
G8'vZ$ 00000°0L095°000000°€0EY €#0°S00L NML - 22Ly9l 01l H3LVYM
aje(Q 8210AU| # lopuap uonduosaq
unowy UN0ooY 8010AU| "ON Od ALD aweN Jway Jopusp
¥202-€202 :des) |edsid
€202/L0/60 001l :isqunp yojeq J8ayanoA

Bunsi |1e3aq 49yanop

uojjog Jo umo |



9l :aobed

0Z'lL'€20e |Ie}J2@IayonoAdyid)  Hoday Wd G0:.¢2:€ €202/0€/80 -p3juud
yoday jo puz
20'61¥9'85$ ‘[ejo puein
GG'209'L$ :|e10] JOPUBA
G5'209'L$ ‘|BJ0L3010AU|/Od
0 #393YD
g7 - sjeusyepy Aeiqi €20¢/L/8
GG'209'L$ 00000°00¥95°000000°LOSY'S¥0°S001L Lglocle 6.2c0ve | ¥2/ec Ad ¥04 STVMINITY 1vOlA0Id3d Ly
:dnoio ¥oay)H
960.L NOILdIFOSENS XOO "M
00°05% -[eJ0 1 Jopusp
00°0S$ ‘[ej013210AU|/Od
0 #393UD
"AJSS "USS - SOOIAISS |BUOISSSJ0Id 80 €¢0c/SL/8
61/01L
00°05% 00000°00¥€£S°000000°L2v¥ ¥¥0°G00L  ©NOL SNG -9€1L 0o I €2/61/01L 3AIND YNOL ALIIO0S IVIIHOLSIH
:dnolo) ¥y
AL3II00S TVIOIHOLSIH A13I4SHIHLIIM
0000L$ :[ejo| lopusp
00°001% '|B}01 @210AU|/Od
0 #398YD
“JadQ Buipjing umo] - swuoyun €c0e/62/8
AINOIN
00°00L$ 00000'0£695°000000°'66EY'€¥0°'G00L 1004 ve/ee Ad o1l AINOIN LOO4d ¥2/ec Ad
:dnoig ¥oayH
1IN3IOHVS AFT1STIM
00°00€$ ‘|ejo] Jopusp
00°00€$ -[B1013210AUl/Od
0 #93YyD
aje 8210AU| # lopuap uonduaseq
unowy JUN029Y 8010AU| "ON Od AD SWEN JIWay Jopusp
¥202-€20C :1ea, |edsld
€202/L0/60 0.0} :iaqunp yojeg Iaydnop

Bunsi [1e3aq 49Yanop

uojjog Jo Umo|



Proposal Information

Wunnee-Neetunah Cave

Proposed name
Proposal type

Wunnee-Neetunah Cave
new name for unnamed feature

Current official name N/A
GNISID N/A
Proponent Cynthia-Corinion Nocton; Connecticut
Date proposed 6/15/2023
BGN case number 6079
Quarterly Review List 452
Feature Details
Primary coordinates n/a
Feature class cave

Name history

USGS primary topo map
State(s)

County(s)

Local jurisdiction(s)
Land ownership

BGN decisions
e None
Other Names

named for the Podunk woman Wunnee-Neetunah, who
according to legend lived in the cave with her Dutch
husband Peter Hagar in the 1600s

Rockville 1:24,000

Connecticut

Capitol Planning Region

Town of Bolton

Bolton Notch State Park

e Unpublished names: None found

e Published names:

o Sg Cave: many published and online sources
o Sg__ 'sHole: A New England Pattern: The History of Manchester, Connecticut,

1973

Case Summary

The new name Wunnee-Neetunah Cave is proposed for an unnamed cave in the Town of Bolton

in the Capitol Planning Region. The cave is not recorded in GNIS and has never been shown or
labeled on USGS maps. The name Sq Cave has been in long-term use.

The cave’s name appears to originate in the 1934 The Story of Wunnee-Neetunah, or The Life of
an Indian Princess of Connecticut by Mathia Spiess; the work is subtitled “A Tale of Truth.” The

Manchester Historical Society “presents the book . . . as a work of fiction, acknowledging the
inclusion of the facts available at the time, as well as mention of ‘Sq___ Cave’ on the ‘new
highway’ in Bolton, that is, Route 44, near Bolton Notch.”



In this legend, Wunnee-neetunah (also called Wunnee), was the daughter of a Podunk chief
named Tantonimoh. Her family adopted Peter Hagar, the cabin boy of a Dutch trader named
Captain May, after Peter fell in love with Wunnee and the Captain encouraged him to live
among the Podunks to learn their language and customs.

After a few years, Peter and Wunnee traveled to Boston with Wunnee’s mother to get married
but learned that there was a law against intermarriage. While they stayed outside the city,
Peter was seen gathering wood on the Sabbath and was arrested and whipped. Before he was
imprisoned, Wunnee and her mother rescued Peter and they fled back to Connecticut. Along
the way, they were attacked, presumably by Massachusetts colonists, and one died in the fight.
Peter was accused of killing the man. Peter and Wunnee did not return to Wunnee’s home but
were married in another Podunk community in Connecticut. Bailiffs from Boston were sent to
capture or kill Peter, but the Podunks warned Peter and Wunnee.

As they sought safety from the bailiffs and from other native groups attacking the Podunks,
Peter and Wunnee “removed their belongings farther east to a cave on the south side of

a rocky mountain known as Wiashqua-ompsk-ut [Wiashguagwumsuck].” After about 30 years,
Peter and Wunnee planned to move north to a Podunk settlement in an area without European
colonists or hostile native groups. However, a group of Mohegan men “found Peter, the
outlaw, living with his Indian wife in the cave ‘where the main trail goes through the Notch in
the mountain, on the east side of the Connecticut River.”” The Mohegans reported them to
local bailiffs who shot Peter. He reached the cave, and Wunnee was sent in after him. They
remined in the cave for several days and when the bailiffs went into the cave, the found it
empty. Wunnee had either snuck out the cave entrance with Peter’s body or found a deeper
passage in the cave through the mountain. Peter was reportedly buried in “the royal burying
ground. . . of the Podunk Tribe” and Wunnee was reportedly taken in by a Windsor couple and
was reportedly buried in Windsor. Spiess wrote:

The cavern home of Peter and Wunnee-neetunah now faces a newly constructed highway
at Bolton Notch and is still known as the sq____ cave.

The name as it came down to us seems to substantiate the belief that few white folks, if
any, ever knew that Peter lived there, for he was ever on the alert. His Indian wife was
known by many of the white squatters who had settled in the vicinity on land, without any
title and against the will of the original proprietors of Hartford.

The land on which the cave is located has been purchased by the State of Connecticut and is
now classed among the state parks.

The interior of the cave leads into a narrow neck which is now impassable. Tradition has it
that this narrow channel once led into a large chamber from which a passage extended to
an opening on the other side of the mountain, as we have already seen. . ..



The cave is visited by thousands of people annually.

It is unknown how much of the legend is truth or fiction. Other sources spell Wunnee-
neetunah’s name as Wunneeneetmah, including the 1938 Federal Writer's Project Connecticut
volume. The cave seems to also have been called Sq___’s Hole, cited in the 1973 A New
England Pattern: The History of Manchester, Connecticut and on an undated postcard that
appears to be from the early 1900s.

The proponent has been advised that if the name is approved, it would not be retrievable via
the GNIS public query. According to the GNIS FAQ Why are there no entries for caves in the

GNIS?:

GNIS does include caves, but the entries are not publicly available. In response to the 1988
National Cave Management Resources Act, Department of the Interior Regulation 43 (CFR
Subtitle A, Part 37) forbids the release of information regarding the location of all caves on
Federal lands. Currently, GNIS does not distinguish between features on Federal versus
non-Federal lands, so all features classified as “cave” are blocked from public access.

Stakeholder Input

Local government Town of Bolton
State Names Authority Connecticut
Federal Agency n/a

All federally recognized Tribes
contacted under Policy X
Connecticut Department of Energy &
Environmental Protection

Federally Recognized Tribes

Other



Domestic Geographic Name Proposal Form

The U.S. Board on Geographic Names (BGN) is responsible for standardizing the names of geographic features
within the 50 States and in other areas under the sovereignty of the United States. The BGN retains the legal
authority to promulgate all official names and locations of natural features (e.g. mountains, rivers, valleys), as well as
canals, channels, reservoirs, and other select feature types.

This form is to propose a new name or name, spelling, or application change for a geographic feature for Federal
use. A proponent should carefully review the proposal prior to submission to ensure that it is consistent with the
BGN policies. Please note all fields with a red outline are required prior to submitting this form.

The proponent should also be aware that the entire proposal—including personal identifying information and any
associated correspondence—is in the public domain and may be made publicly available at any time.

Submit 1. Email this form and supporting OR 2. Send by mail to:
Praposal: documentation to: BGNEXEC@ usgs.qov U.S. BGN Executive Secretary, Domestic Names
i.  Save PDF as ‘ST_GeographicName’ 12201 Sunrise Valley Drive, MS-523
; for example C0O_BearCreek’ Reston, VA 20192
Contact Us: ii.  Email Subject: ST_GeographicName
_ BONEXEC@usesoov Peasenotothatanything submited by mail wil delayec

Naming Basics

Proposed Name: Is this to change an existing name?

Wunnee-Neetunah Cave [EI Y D N

[fyes, please provide the official name and Feature D

Is this name in current local use? : : : :
as it appears in the Geographic Names Information

v [=]w System (GNIS).

What is the Feature Class? GNIS Name: N/A

Cave E| Feature ID; /A

Where is the feature? v General Location:

Latitude: 41.79019 (38.94741) e State: Connecticut

Longitude: .72 44644 (-77.36839) =) County: Tolland

For Linear Features (e.g. stream or valley): City/Town/ Bolton
Mouth/Confluence Ez‘:\;nusghr:? /

Latitude: (38.94741)

Longiue: (-77.56839) Public Land Survey System:
Source/Headwater Section(s), Township, Range, Meridian

Latitude: (36.94741)

Longitude: (-77.36839)

T —————



Feature Description

Physical shape, length, width, etc. (Maps can be submitted separately by email)

It is located in Bolton Notch State Park and can be seen from the road. It is a true cave, meaning it was
caused by water erosion of limestone. The cave consists of a ten foot chamber followed by a three foot
wide tunnel that continues for roughly forty feet before narrowing to a point that is unsafe to pass through
but continues for an unknown number of feet into the rock in a second chamber containing running water.
One side of the opening chamber has a slight ledge. The floor of the cave is soil.

Name Details

Name information:
The cave is known by the derogatory name of "Sq___ " Cave." According to local
refovantinfomalion legend, which has gained popularity in recent years but is an old legend, a Dutch cabin
boy named Peter Hager was part of a trading party with the local Podunk Nation (now
about the proposed  gad|y extinct). He fell in love with a local woman, Wunnee-Neetunah, and they got
name, such as married in the way of her nation. When Peter tried to return to his trading party, he was
origin, meaning, how rejected and they spent their exile together in this cave. Whether this legend is true or
long it has beenin  not is up for debate, but | think this story, the origin of the cave's derogatory name,
current use, as wel/ would be better remembered for the love story between Wunnee-Neetunah and Peter
as current or Hager than for a slur that disrespects the memory of Wunnee-Neetunah. The cave's
physical size is small, and it doesn't appear in your dataset, so | am unsure if it has
been properly surveyed. However, the current name is commonly used in the area and
in cave enthusiasts' circles, and the location is within a state park (Bolton Notch) so |
think it should be renamed to fit the decision in 2022 that the word sq___is

| belleve the feature 4o aatory. The name has been in use since at least 1934.
reguires a name or

name change and
why the proposed
name is appropriate.
Describe any
documents that you
will be submitting
(separately by email)
to support your
proposal,

Please provide

historical
significance. Also
include why you



Please provide a list of supporting documentation, including any web links:

Examples: Published sources showing the proposed name or letters of support (local government, historical
socrety, etc.).

https://enterthecaves.com/best-caves-in-connecticut/#2-boltons-squaw-cave
https://explorect.org/bolton-notch/

https://www.newspapers.com/newspage/247060874/

http://www.manchesterhistory.org/reprints/WunneeBook.pdf
https://worldofcaves.com/the-best-list-of-caves-in-connecticut/

Is the name commemorative? Does the name honor or refer to a person or persons? ElY Ij N

Please note that the BGN will only accept proposals for names that are intended to honor a person or persons
deceased at least five years. The BGN will disapprove names that could be construed to honor living persons. The
person being honored should have had either (1) some direct or long-term association with the feature, or (2) have
made a significant contribution to the area, community, or State in which it is located; or (3) have outstanding
national or international recognition. The BGN discourages the use of an individual’s full name except to avoid
ambigurty.

If yes, please provide the following:

Honoree’s Date of Birth: Unknown Honoree's Date of Death: 1640

Short biography and significance or association with the geographic feature: (/ist any additional honorees here)

Wunnee-Neetunah was a woman of the Podunk Nation living around 1640 in what is now Connecticut.
That year, she and a cabin boy named Peter Hager from a Dutch vessel, possibly Adriaen Block's ship
the Onrust, allegedly fell in love and married in the Podunk tradition, but were outcast from settler society
and lived inn this cave for a time while in exile. Some versions of the legend have them found and one or
both being injured badly by angry settlers and retreating into the cave until they succumb to their wounds,
in thheir lover's arms. Additionally, some versions of the legend have them found by the Podunk Nation
and buried properly after they are found dead.




Is the feature in a Wilderness Ifyes, please provide your justification for making an
. Y N . y ;
Area or Wilderness Study Area? EI IE] D Unknown exception to the Wilderness Policy:

Please note that the BGN will not approve new names for unnamed features within wilderness areas or wilderness
study areas, unless an overriding need can be demonstrated by the proponent.

Additional Information & -

Is there any local opposition or conflict with the proposed name? DY E' N
If yes, please explain and describe any opposition:

Additional notes:

| have not sought any prior approval for this name change, so there will probably be some reactionaries,
but | think that this is nullified by secretarial orders 3404 and 3405.

Proponent Information g

Please provide one form of contact (email preferred): _._f Are you completing this form for someone else?
& Proponent’s Name: €Oy nqcton DY EN
Agency or Organization, if applicable: Ifyes, please fill out the following:
Completed by:

Full Name:

% Email:  cccn913@gmail.com
Email:

Mailing
ﬁ Address: ‘ Mailing
1 Address:
@3 Phone: '§ Phone:

Please submit this form and supporting documentation to. 1. By email to BGNEXEC@usgs.gov 2. By mail to the address on page 2.



YVVVVVYVYYVYY

VVVVYYVYVYVVYVYVYYVYYY

e

9/01/23
Highlights for September Meeting

From Town Administrator

Base in for temp structure and structure being configured. Anticipated delivery Sept 29.
Getting ready for fall paving projects on Williams and French.

Continuing to work on cyber upgrades.

Continuing migration to .gov domain.

Renewed insurance for BLRWCA.

Sold brush truck.

Continue to plan Heritage farm Trail.

Brought our intern on staff and have him working on employee handbook.

Attended HRTA meeting where the group set goals for the upcoming year. The main goal will be installing
signage per the grant award.

Attended EHHD board of directors meeting.

Received CEDAS Gold certification based on recent application.

Finalized Sustainable CT application and submitted it with much assistance from many.
Continued progress on Connectivity trail.

Library patio site almost fully prepped.

Successful lake season with it currently closed.

Dealing with some invasive plants in the lake currently.

Met with Pam Phillps regarding the opiate grant.

Holding regular meetings for planning of living history weekend.

Submitted homeland security grant.

Awarded ARPA DESPP Rural Roads Grant for traffic enforcement. Waiting on funding.
Submitted STEAP Grant for Herrick Park.

Ice cream social for staff was apricated by those that attended.

Respectfully Submitted, James Rupert



